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RFP No. 1-13-C041 
Fraud and Ethics Hotline Services  

for the Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority 
 
Questions and Answers 
 
Notice: Questions may have been edited for clarity and relevance. 
 
1. Will we be permitted to make a short presentation on bid day, about our plan to 

integrate the new ethics program into the MWAA culture? 
Answer: No. Please highlight your plan in your proposal. If required, short listed 
offerors may be requested to provide Oral Interviews. 
 

2. Will a vendor be considered non-responsive if they do not share Diversity spend and 
or subcontractor utilization? 
Answer: This solicitation has a 0% LDBE participation requirement, however the 
Airports Authority encourages all offerors provide information relating to these efforts 
(Exhibits) and return them with their offer. 
 

3. Will a vendor be considered non-responsive if the vendor submits exceptions to your 
terms and conditions and/or excludes terms and conditions that do not apply? 
Answer: Provisions of the solicitation will not be changed.  Qualified offers will be 
deemed non-conforming.  
 

4. May a vendor incorporate its contract into the response RFP response? 
Answer:  See response to question 3. 
 

5. Will a vendor be disqualified if administrative support hours do not line up precisely 
with your requested admin support hours? 
Answer:  No. 
 

6. Recording calls to a hotline and originating telephone numbers is in direct conflict 
with data privacy. This requirement is in direct conflict with SECTION X, Attachment 
01, STATEMENT OF WORK, Section B and Section F. 
Answer: See Amendment 001. 
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7. MWAA has 1,500 employees. Please help us understand the total volume of potential 
reporters. How many contractors and vendors will have access to the hotline on an 
annual basis? 
Answer: In addition to Airports Authority employees, about 500 contractors/vendors 
are routinely on-site. We have received about one anonymous complaint from a 
contractor in each of the last three years. 
 

8. How many investigators do you anticipate having access to the case management 
system? 
Answer: Two or three investigators. 
 

9. Does MWAA seek to use the case management system to track the investigation, 
capture notes of investigators and the ultimate disposition of the case? 
Answer: No. 
 

10. Does the Authority currently have a hotline?  How many reports has the Authority 
received annually for 2012? 2011? 2010? 
Answer:  The Airports Authority does not have a full service hotline.  The Authority 
has received approximately 10 anonymous reports in each of the last two years. 
 

11. Are all potential reports English speaking or do you need other languages for 
incoming calls and web reporting? What languages are needed? 
Answer:  English is the only required language. 
 

12. Why is this hotline- intake - case management system needed at this time? What is 
the primary driver? 
Answer:  A Hotline has been identified as good businesses practice for companies the 
size of the Authority. 
 

13. Confirm what is meant in SECTION X, Attachment 01, STATEMENT OF WORK, Section 
B1 that reports must be read and acted upon. All reports, phone and web, are 
captured by our staff and distributed to MWAA personnel as directed by MWAA, but 
the contractor will take no action beyond following your distribution directions. 
Answer: Correct. 
 

14. Many different types of promotional materials are available. Does MWAA want 
posters, brochures, business cards? In what languages? 
Answer: See Amendment 001.  English is the only required language. Please detail the 
proposed items and potential quantities.  Include posters and brochures that your 
company has determined work best in similar sized organizations with three 
worksites in a 40 mile radius. Include any other media your company believes is 
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effective and necessary to make the workforce sufficiently aware of the Hotline and 
how to access it. 
 

15. What is the percentage of employee and vendor-supplier turnover on an annual 
basis? 
Answer: Employee turnover is low. Many vendor contracts are three to five years and 
many have completed more than one contract term at the airport. 
 

16. Please state the volume (per language) of each promotional item desired. 
Answer:  See response to Questions 11 and 14. 
 

17. Is one design sufficient or do you want multiple design options for promotional 
materials? 
Answer:  See response to Questions 11 and 14.  
 

18. Are you interested in short educational vignettes to distribute to employees, vendors 
and suppliers to promote the hotline? 
Answer:  See response to Questions 11 and 14. 
 

19. Do employees, vendors and suppliers have access to computers? What percentage? 
Answer: Yes. Around 80% have access. 
 

20. Do employees, vendor and suppliers have access to television monitors for training, 
e.g., in a lunch room? 
Answer: Yes. 
 

21. Are you interested on training on Reporting & Retaliation for employees and/or 
managers? 
Answer: No. 
 

22. SECTION VI - SPECIAL PROVISIONS, 01 USE OF CONTRACT BY OTHER 
JURISDICTIONS - can you clarify the relevance? Should I just mark "no" to all since 
the hotline will not be available to them? 
Answer:  Failure to extend a contract to any participating Jurisdiction will have no 
effect on consideration of proposals. 
 

23. SECTION VII - CONTRACT PROVISIONS, 02 PRE-PERFORMANCE CONFERENCE and 
05 SAFETY REQUIREMENTS - Are the conferences to be in person or will tele-
conferences suffice? 
Answer:   If required, teleconferences will be acceptable. 
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24. Statement of Work - A6 - it is generally not a good practice to record calls because it 
discourages reporters who want to be assured anonymity. Is this required? How do 
you reconcile this against your requirement that we ensure anonymity? Even without 
leaving a name, recorded voices are easily recognized. 
Answer: See Amendment 001. 
 

25. SECTION X, Attachment 01, STATEMENT OF WORK - A7 - is a unique toll-free number 
required?  
Answer:  Yes.  A unique toll-free number is required. 
 

26. SECTION X, Attachment 01, STATEMENT OF WORK - B1 & 2 - our trained operators 
are available 24/7 but our reports are also reviewed by credentialed fraud examiners 
prior to being delivered to our clients. These reviews generally occur between 8 a.m. 
and 10 p.m. EST. Reports are typically delivered within one business day, but 
practically within an hour if between 8 a.m. and 10 p.m. EST. Would automated 
delivery, without the benefit of review by credentialed professionals be preferred? 
Answer:  No.   


